
    
0                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
   

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2021 
 

RESIDENTS ARE WELCOME TO WATCH THE MEETINGS VIA FACEBOOK LIVE AT  
(https://www.facebook.com/peru.illinois) 

QUESTIONS CAN BE PRESENTED USING THE COMMENT FUNCTION OR EMAILED TO  
DBARTLEY@PERU.IL.US  

 
 
ROLL CALL     7:00 P.M.     
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
 
MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS 
 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF AUGUST 30, 2021 
 
PERU VOLUNTEER AMBULANCE SERVICE MONTHLY ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR AUGUST 2021 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS  

      
1. FINANCE COMMITTEE     
  

DISBURSEMENTS for September 15, 2021 
 
Motion to authorize sale of Renewable Energy Credits to Carbon Solutions Group, LLC in the 
amount of $40,224.50 
 
 

2. PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 
  

 
 3. POLICE AND FIRE COMMITTEE 
 

https://www.facebook.com/peru.illinois


REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION OF QUIKTRIP CORPORATION  
CONCERNING PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1320-1340 MAY ROAD, PERU, IL  
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF QT 7203 ADDITION TO THE CITY OF PERU AND  
GRANTING VARIANCES AS SOUGHT BY QUIKTRIP CORPORATION 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF PERU PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETING DATES FOR  
CALENDAR YEAR 2021 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF PERU FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATES FOR CALENDAR 
YEAR 2021 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF PERU POLICE AND FIRE COMMITTEE MEETING DATES FOR 
CALENDAR YEAR 2021 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY COMMONLY KNOWN AS 1602 5th  
STREET, PERU, ILLINOIS, BY DEED IN LIEU OF FORECLOSURE 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR USE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PERU AND MCC NETWORK SERVICES, LLC (Portions of Putnam Street, 3rd  
Street & Henry Street)  
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR USE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PERU AND MCC NETWORK SERVICES LLC (May Road between Illinois Route  
251 and Plank Road) 
 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT AND COMMITMENT OF LOCAL FUNDS FOR SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL  
APPLICATION FOR THE SHOOTING PARK ROAD SIDEWALK EXTENSION PROJECT 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A PERMANENT EASEMENT  
AGREEMENT FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS ALONG SHOOTING PARK ROAD IN PERU, ILLINOIS 
 
 
PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
ITEM NO. 1 Communication from LaSalle-Peru High School requesting permission to hold the 

annual Homecoming Parade on Wednesday, September 29th at 4:00 p.m. beginning at 
Rotary Park; No parking signs to be posted at park 

 
ITEM NO. 2 Communication from Sara Fitzpatrick requesting permission to have a birthday party 

on the basketball courts one day in October from 4:00 p.m.-10:00 p.m.; music from 
local DJ   

 



  
MAYOR’S NOTES 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 30, 2021 
   

 1 

A regular meeting of the Peru City Council was called to order by Mayor Ken Kolowski in the Peru City 
Council Chambers on Monday, August 30, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with 
Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo present; Mayor 
Kolowski present. 

All joined in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.  

Mayor Kolowski asked for a moment of silence for the 13 service members who lost their lives on August 
26th in Kabul. 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

PRESENTATION 

Finance Director Justin Miller presented the results from Governmental Accounting Standards Board for 
pensions. The GASB report is the assessment of the status of police and fire pensions from April 30, 
2020, through April 20, 2021. Mr. Miller stated the report shows a 10.7% funding increase in the police 
pension over the past year, which is a total of 25% total increase over the previous year. Peru police 
pension now sits at 53% funded. Mr. Miller stated this is great news. Mr. Miller stated Hometown Trust 
and the police pension board deserve credit there as well as the city council and everybody that took part 
in contributing that. Mr. Miller stated the firefighters pension saw a similar increase of 9.7% over the 
course of the report as the pension currently sits around 76% funded. Mr. Miller stated 80% really is the 
benchmark that you look for to be a healthy plan and excited that it’s trending in that direction and 
Vezzetti Capital Management and the pension board deserve a lot of credit there. Mr. Miller stated that 
normally there are very minimal changes, most of the time they are slightly down or slightly up, but this 
year’s is a little more noteworthy, due to a couple of different factors. Mr. Miller said over the past 10 
years, the city has increased the funding at its level, which has led to increased cash available for 
investments to be managed within the pension funds. Mr. Miller stated we also had increases in the ability 
to invest in equities mixed with the market conditions of last year, which produced very abnormal and 
positive gains in both funds. Mr. Miller stated it is hopeful these gains can continue moving forward as 
they continue to climb toward the current goal of 80% funded in each pension for those that serve the 
community. Alderman Waldorf made a motion to receive and place on file the GASB 67, 68 and 75 
reporting for the year-ending 04/30/2021. Alderman Payton seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus 
and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS  

Mayor Kolowski presented the Regular Meeting Minutes of August 16, 2021; City Clerk’s Report of 
Cash Received for July 2021 and Peru Police Department Monthly Report for July 2021. Alderman 
Payton made a motion the minutes and reports be received and placed on file. Alderman Buffo seconded 
the motion; motion carried. 
 
FINANCE AND SAFETY COMMITTEE  

Alderman Buffo presented the following disbursements for payment on September 1, 2021:  

FUND NAME      TOTAL EXPENSES 

General Fund                     $590,798.03 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 30, 2021 
   

 2 

Insurance Fund                         90,751.65 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund         345,585.79 

Utility Fund                                           666,525.57   

Airport Fund                                 47.53 

Total                   $1,693,708.57 

Alderman Buffo made a motion the minutes and reports be received, placed on file and the bills be paid in 
the usual manner. Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with 
Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion 
carried.  

Alderman Payton to authorize payment of $3,000 to NCICG Economic Development District annual local 
share for 2021-2022 (50/50 matching grant). Alderman Sapienza seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave 
Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus 
and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE  

Alderman Lukosus made a motion to authorize the purchase of new outdoor 48vdc batteries and 
enclosure at James Hardie to provide power for the close on the breaker and the relay cabinet. PSM/Fire 
Chief Jeff King reported on upgrades to the James Hardie electrical service stating the proposed 
improvements to the breaker and relay cabinet involve rebuilding the and replacing the battery banks and 
updates to the heat and air conditioning systems. Alderman Waldorf seconded the motion. City Clerk 
Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, 
Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

Alderman Lukosus made a motion to approve proposal from Advanced Asphalt for parking lot 
improvements at the Public Services building in the amount of $167,623.37. City Clerk Dave Bartley 
called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo 
voting aye; motion carried. 

POLICE AND FIRE COMMITTEE 

Alderman Buffo announced there will be a public open house for the new Public Safety Complex on 
Saturday, September 18th from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. Alderman Buffo stated it’s a very nice facilty and 
he hopes everyone can make it. Alderman Buffo stated you will be able to take a tour and check it out and 
meet some of Peru’s finest while you’re at it. It should be a good time. 

Alderman Buffo noted the ceremonial swearing-in of Chief of Police Bob Pyszka and Deputy Chief Sarah 
Raymond. 

REPORT OF CITY ATTORNEY/ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  

Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed ordinance entitled: 

ORDINANCE NO. 6573 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 30, 2021 
   

 3 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF PERU AND ILLINOIS VALLEY 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT NO. 513 FOR USE OF VETERAN’S PARK IN PERU, 
ILLINOIS 

Alderman Waldorf made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Tieman 
seconded the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, 
Edgcomb, Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

Corporate Counsel Scott Schweickert presented a proposed resolution entitled: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-18 

A RESOLUTION OF A GOVERNMENTAL BODY ACCEPTING MEMBERSHIP AS A 
MEMBER OF THE QUAD CITY HEALTH INSURANCE POOL (“QCHIP”) SUB-POOL 
WHICH IS A MEMBER OF THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL PERSONNEL BENEFIT 
COOPERATIVE 

Alderman Payton made a motion the ordinance be adopted as written and read. Alderman Buffo seconded 
the motion. City Clerk Dave Bartley called the roll with Aldermen Ballard, Tieman, Payton, Edgcomb, 
Waldorf, Sapienza, Lukosus and Buffo voting aye; motion carried. 

PROCLAMATIONS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Clerk Bartley presented a communication from Cary Miller, President, TBM Avenger Reunion/Salute to 
Veterans requesting funding for the 2022 TBM Avenger Reunion/Salute to Veterans event. Alderman 
Buffo made a motion the communication be received, placed on file and permission granted. Alderman 
Tieman seconded the motion; motion carried. 

MAYOR’S NOTES 

Mayor Kolowski noted the clerk’s office and city departments would be closed on Monday, September 6th 
for the Labor Day holiday. 

Kim Reese, Human Resource Director reported on the upcoming golf outing on September 11th. Ms. 
Reese stated proceeds will go to Cops 4 Cancer. Ms. Reese stated the committee is still looking for teams, 
donations and volunteers. 

Mayor Kolowski reported on the 20th Anniversary of September 11th terrorist attacks. Mayor Kolowski 
stated there will be a memorial display at Pulaski Square in honor of the anniversary. 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

CEREMONIAL SWEARING-IN 



CITY OF PERU REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AUGUST 30, 2021 
   

 4 

Mayor Kolowski initiated the swearing in of Bob Pyszka to Chief of Police. 

Mayor Kolowski initiated the swearing in of Sarah Raymond to Deputy Chief of Police. 

CLOSED SESSION    

ADJOURNMENT  

Alderman Tieman made a motion that the meeting be adjourned. Alderman Payton seconded the motion 
and motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 























































































































































































































  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Honorable Ken Kolowski 

Mayor of the City of Peru 

1901 Fourth Street 

Peru, IL 61354 

 

Dear Mr. Mayor, 

 

LaSalle-Peru High School would like to request permission to hold the annual Homecoming 

Parade on Wednesday, September 29, 2021 at 4:00 PM.  This year, as usual, the parade will 

line up at City Park in Peru.  It will proceed east along Route 6 into LaSalle, south on Bucklin 

Street and east along First Street. 

 

We would also like to request that No Parking signs be posted around the park on the day before 

the parade.  It is much easier to line up the trucks, floats, band, etc. without cars parked along 

these streets. 

 

You are invited to be a part of the parade.  We would be delighted if the city would enter a float 

or car! 

 

Please email Carie Lawrence (clawrence@lphs.net) & Will Zukowski (wzukowski@lphs.net) at 

the high school if you need any further information.   

 

Thank you. 

 
Sincerely,  

 

 

 

 

Carie Lawrence, Student Council Advisor  Will Zukowski, Student Council Advisor 

 

 

 

mailto:clawrence@lphs.net
mailto:wzukowski@lphs.net


August 10, 2021 

Sara Fitzpatrick 
1217 Plain St. 
Peru IL, 61354 
(815) 878-8284 
 
 

City of Peru 
1901 4th St.  
Peru, IL 61354   
 
To Whom It May Concern, 

We are writing to request permission to utilize the basketball courts at the Jay Happ Splash pad in Peru, 
IL for a birthday party.  The dates in question are October 1st, 2nd, 8th, or 9th (the date is flexible based 
upon park availability).  The space is needed for only one of the previously stated days from 4:00 – 
10:00.  This would allow a two hour setup prior to the start of the event.  Guests would arrive at 6:00 
PM.  We are expecting 40 guests throughout the evening.  Music would be provided by a local D.J.  We 
have taken the initiative to speak with the neighbors surrounding the venue.  Everyone is on board and 
invited to the event.   

Please let us know if you need any additional information.  We look forward to using this space for our 
celebration.   

 

Sincerely, 

Sara Fitzpatrick 

 

spiscia@peru.il.us 

 


	Agenda 091321
	MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2021
	MINUTES/FINANCIAL REPORTS/ACTIVITY REPORTS
	COMMITTEE REPORTS
	PROCLAMATIONS
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENT


	Regular Meeting Minutes 083021
	PVAS August 2021
	09.15 Disbursements
	Minutes.QuikTrip
	Ordinance.QuikTrip
	Ordinance Amending Peru Public Services Mtg Dates
	Ordinance Amending Finance Mtg Dates
	Ordinance.Amending Police and Fire Dates
	Ordinance.1602 5th St.
	Ordinance.MCC Network.Putnam St.3rd St.Henry St
	Ordinance.MCC NetworkServices.May Rd.
	Resolution.Shooting Park Rd Sidewalk Ext Proj
	Ordinance.Permanent Easement Agreement.
	LP Parade
	Sara

